
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
September 1, 2015–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

             
1. Call to Order.
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.
 

4. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

A.   Case #: Z-2015-12
Applicant: Kerry Anne Schultz Agent for The Busbee Limited Partnership

and Murphy J. Jacob Trust
Address: 9600 BLK Tower Ridge Road
Property
Size:

78.72 (+/-) acres

From: RMU, Rural Mixed-use district (two du/acre)
To: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (seven du/acre)

 

B.   Case #: Z-2015-13
Applicant: J. Dan Gilmore, Agent for Exit 3 Investments, LLC 
Address: Detailed Specific Area Plan
Property
Size:

1400 (+/-) acres

From: Agricultural district (Agr), density of one dwelling unit per acres
and
Rural Mixed-use district (RMU), density of two dwelling units
per acre

To: Low Density Residential district (LDR), Detailed Specific Area
Plan Land Use Conservation Neighborhood with a maximum
density of 3 dwelling units per net acre.

Medium Density Residential district (MDR), Detailed Specific
Area Plan Land Use Suburban Garden with a maximum density



of 10 dwelling units per acre.

High Density Residential district (HDR), Detailed Specific Area
Plan Land Use Traditional Garden with a maximum density of 10
dwelling units per acre.

High Density Residential district (HDR), Detailed Specific Area
Plan Land Use Traditional Village with a maximum density of 20
dwelling units per acre.

High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU), Detailed Specific
Area Plan Land Use Neighborhood Center, with a maximum
gross floor area of 15,000 square feet.

Commercial district (Com), Detailed Specific Area Plan Land
Use Village Center, with a maximum gross floor area of 200,000
square feet.

 

5. Public Hearings.
 

6. Adjournment.
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
CASE : Z-2015-12
APPLICANT: Kerry Anne Schultz, Agent for The Busbee Limited Partnership

and Murphy J. Jacob Trust 

ADDRESS: 9600 Block Tower Ridge Road 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 01-1S-32-1000-070-003; 01-1S-32-1000-050-003;
01-1S-32-1000-050-004; 01-1S-32-1000-110-003;
01-1S-32-1000-080-003; 01-1S-32-1000-120-004

FUTURE LAND USE: RC (MU-S pending state
review)  

DISTRICT: 1  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 07/07/2015 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: RMU, Rural Mixed-use district (two du/acre)

TO: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (seven du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of its provisions.

CP Policy FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and redevelopment in
unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia County
Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CP Policy FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.
FLUM Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S)



General Description: Intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses while
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land
uses.
Range of Allowable Uses: Residential, retail sales & services, professional office,
recreational facilities, public and civic.
Standards:
Residential Minimum Density: 2 du/acre
Maximum Density: 25 du/acre
Non-Residential Minimum Intensity: None
Maximum Intensity: 1.0 Floor Area Ratio (FAR)

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and FLUM.
Although the increased density of the proposed LDMU zoning is consistent with that
allowed by the pending Mixed-Use Suburban FLU, and the permitted uses of the
proposed LDMU are consistent with the stated intent of MU-S to allow for a mix of
residential and non-residential uses, compatible infill would not be promoted by the
range of LDMU allowed uses.

Alternatively, Low Density Residential (LDR) zoning would be compatible and remain
consistent with both the allowed uses and density of MU-S. Consistency with other
applicable policies of the Comprehensive Plan would be confirmed during review of
proposed development for compliance with implementing Land Development Code
regulations.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the stated purposes and intent of the
LDC and not in conflict with any of its provisions.

LDC Sec. 3-2.4 Rural Mixed-use district (RMU).
(a) Purpose. The Rural Mixed-use (RMU) district establishes appropriate areas and land
use regulations for a mix of low density residential uses and compatible non-residential
uses within areas that have historically developed as rural or semi-rural communities.
The primary intent of the district is to sustain these communities by allowing greater
residential density, smaller residential lots, and a more diverse mix of non-residential
uses than the Agricultural or Rural Residential districts, but continue to support the
preservation of agriculturally productive lands. The RMU district allows public facilities
and services necessary for the health, safety, and welfare of the rural mixed-use
community, and other non-residential uses that are compact, traditionally neighborhood
supportive, and compatible with rural community character. District communities are
often anchored by arterial and collector streets, but they are not characterized by urban
or suburban infrastructure. Residential uses are generally limited to detached
single-family dwellings, consistent with existing rural communities and limited
infrastructure.

LDC Sec. 3-2.5 Low Density Residential district (LDR).
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district establishes appropriate areas



(a) Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for residential uses at low densities within suburban areas. The
primary intent of the district is to provide for large-lot suburban type residential
neighborhood development that blends aspects of rural openness with the benefits of
urban street connectivity, and at greater density than the Rural Residential district.
Residential uses within the LDR district are predominantly detached single-family
dwellings. Clustering dwellings on smaller residential lots may occur where needed to
protect prime farmland from non-agricultural use or to conserve and protect
environmentally sensitive areas. The district allows non-residential uses that are
compatible with suburban residential neighborhoods and the natural resources of the
area. 

LDC Sec. 3-2.6 Low Density Mixed-use district (LDMU).
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Mixed-use (LDMU) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for a complementary mix of low density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within mostly suburban areas. The primary intent of the
district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood-scale retail sales, services and
professional offices with greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density
Residential district. Additionally, the LDMU district is intended to rely on a pattern of
well-connected streets and provide for the separation of suburban uses from more dense
and intense urban uses. Residential uses within the district include most forms of
single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.
(f) Rezoning to LDMU. Low Density Mixed-use zoning may be established only within the
Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) and Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) future land use categories.
The district is suitable for suburban or urban areas with central water and sewer and
developed street networks. The district is appropriate to provide transitions between
areas zoned or used for low or medium density residential and areas zoned or used for
high density mixed-use. Rezoning to LDMU is subject to the same location criteria as
any new non-residential use proposed within the LDMU district.
(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the LDMU district that
are not part of a predominantly residential development or a planned unit development,
or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be on parcels that satisfy at
least one of the following location criteria:
(5) Documented compatibility. A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant
provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the parcel
or use that were not anticipated by the alternative location criteria [along an arterial or
collector street], and the proposed use will be able to achieve long-term compatibility
with existing and potential uses.

FINDINGS
The proposed rezoning to LDMU is not consistent with stated purposes of the LDC and 
is in conflict with some provisions. The primary intent of the LDMU district, (to provide
for a mix of neighborhood-scale retail sales and services, professional offices, and
greater dwelling unit density and diversity than LDR) cannot be appropriately fulfilled at
the location proposed. The location does not comply with the arterial or collector street
criteria of the district, and there are no unique circumstances regarding the subject
parcels that were unanticipated by those criteria.



Rezoning to LDMU is appropriate where there is a pattern of well-connected streets, but
the surrounding streets are within substandard rights-of-way and not well-connected. 
The district is also appropriate to provide separation between suburban and urban
uses, but that function is not applicable to the subject parcels.  Conversely, some
LDMU allowed uses at the location proposed could create a need for separation.

Alternatively, the LDR district would allow an increase in the density of single-family
detached dwellings.  LDR would also be consistent with the purposes of the LDC and
not in conflict with its provisions. Consistency with other purposes of the LDC would be
confirmed during review of proposed development for compliance with applicable
regulations.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities, and conditions
and able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such that no
use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed, but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
All land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed zoning are 
not compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities, and conditions. Unlike
the current RMU or alternative LDR, uses allowed by LDMU include new or expanded
manufactured home parks and subdivisions, townhouses, zero lot line subdivisions, and
retail sales and services within a neighborhood retail center up to 35,000 square feet. 
Uses, activities, and conditions allowed by LDR would, however, be compatible with
those surrounding the subject parcels.

The area of existing LDMU on the east side of Tower Ridge Road is limited to a county
parcel used for storage of road maintenance materials (e.g., milled asphalt, concrete
pipe). As established by the original county zoning, the area of MDR immediately south
of the subject parcels was zoned to accomodate medium density single-family and
two-family (R-3)uses, but through a recently approved subdivision plan the area will be
developed for detached single-family dwellings at less than two units per acre. Neither of
these areas support the establishment of LDMU on the subject parcels.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions.
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
In February, 2015 the county approved the preliminary plat and construction plan for
Vintage Creek Subdivision, a 161-lot single-family detached dwelling development on



115 acres immediately south of the subject parcels. That use represents a change to
such a degree that it could be in the public interest to encourage similar new uses
and density in the area through rezoning.  The LDR district would allow such use and
density.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns.
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development pattern
due to the incompatible land uses and residential density that it would allow. 
Alternatively, uses and density allowed by LDR would contribute to a pattern of logical
and orderly development. 

CRITERION f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4
Effect on natural environment.
Whether the proposed rezoning would not increase the probability of any significant
adverse impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
The proposed rezoning would not increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment. The approximately 12.5 acres of jurisdictional
wetlands preliminarily identified within the subject property require protection from most
uses. The actual presence and extent of adverse impacts from future development on
the parcel would be confirmed through review of the development for compliance with
applicable Land Development Code regulations regardless of the zoning
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     *    *   *1
CASE NO:  Z-2015-122

3
Applicant:   Kerry Anne Schultz Agent for The 

             Busbee Limited Partnership and Murphy J. 4
             Jacob Trust

5
Address:     9600 BLK Tower Ridge Road

6
Property

Size:        78.72 (+/-Acres)7

From:        RMU, Rural Mixed-use district 8
             (Two du/acre)

9
To:          LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district 

             (seven du/acre)10
_____________________________________________________

11
MR. TATE:  At this time we'll go ahead and 12

move to our second rezoning case, which is 13
Case 2015-12.  This is for rezoning of 78.72 14
acres at 9600 -- it's the Tower Ridge Road 09:15AM 15
location, from RMU, Rural Mixed Use District, 16
to LDMU, Low Density Mixed Use District.  17

I will say while we have decreased the 18
number of zoning districts, we have increased 19
the size of the names.  09:15AM 20

Ms. Kerry Anne Schultz will be the agent 21
for Busbee Limited Partnership and the Murphy 22
J. Jacob Trust.  23

Members of the Board, has there been any 24
ex parte between you and the applicant, the 09:16AM 25
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applicant's agents or attorney or witnesses, 1

with fellow Planning Board members or anyone 2

from the general public prior to this hearing?  3

Have you visited the subject property?  Please 4

also disclose if you are a relative or 09:16AM 5

business associate of the applicant or the 6

applicant's agent.7

We'll go ahead and once again we'll start 8

from my left going this way. 9

MS. ORAM:  No to all.  09:16AM 10

MR. PYLE:  No communication.  I'm familiar 11

with the area.  I've been there recently. 12

MR. LOWERY:  No to all. 13

MR. TATE:  No communication, however, I am 14

familiar with the area. 09:16AM 15

MR. CORDES:  No communication.  I'm fairly 16

familiar with the area. 17

MR. WINGATE:  No communication, but I did 18

view the property at an intense level.  19

MR. RUSHING:  No to all.  09:16AM 20

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  21

Staff, was notice of the hearing sent to 22

all interested parties?  23

MS. BOHON:  Yes. 24

MR. TATE:  Was notice of the hearing 09:17AM 25
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posted on the subject property?  1

MS. BOHON:  Yes, sir. 2

MR. TATE:  We'll now ask staff to present 3

the maps and photographs for Case Number 4

Z-2015-12. 09:17AM 5

(Presentation of Maps and Photographs.)6

MR. VICKERY:  Good morning.  I'm Griffin 7

Vickery, Planner.  8

This is the location map of the site.  9

It's located on Tower Ridge Road between Frank 09:17AM 10

Reeder and Mobile Highway and Nine Mile Road 11

where they come together.  12

This is an aerial photo.  And the wetland 13

area is based on the National Wetlands 14

Inventory Map.  I think the applicant has a 09:17AM 15

much more precise delineation of the wetlands.  16

There are a little more wetlands on the site, 17

I believe, than this shows.  That, again, is 18

based on the national map.  19

This is the existing land uses to give you 09:18AM 20

a little point of reference on some of this.  21

For the adjoining properties this is a 22

two-acre parcel here.  Immediately south of 23

that those are a couple of one-acre parcels, 24

to give you a point of reference for the size 09:18AM 25
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of the properties out there.  The requested 1

rezoning is almost 80 acres. 2

This is one parcel here.  This is county 3

property.  Up in here is about five acres.  If 4

you go up here on Frank Reeder, these range 09:18AM 5

from -- I think these are half-acre parcels.  6

These are about .6 acres and .3, just to give 7

you an idea sizewise of the adjoining 8

properties.  9

This is a map of the current Future Land 09:19AM 10

Use.  This site you may recall was before you 11

for a Future Land Use Map amendment proposing 12

that it go from Rural Community, which is what 13

it is today still, to Mixed Use Suburban.  14

That left this Board with a recommendation.  09:19AM 15

It also was approved by the Board of County 16

Commissioners for transmittal to the State.  17

That's where it currently is.  We're awaiting 18

response from them and it's assumed if that's 19

a positive response from the State it will be 09:19AM 20

approved by the Board of County Commissioners 21

as a map amendment.  22

MR. TATE:  Just hold on that just for a 23

moment.  Board members, if you will remember 24

that issue here sometimes we actually end up 09:19AM 25
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hearing requests to change Future Land Use in 1

the same meeting or the next meeting that 2

follows this for property.  This one came to 3

us in front, has gone through this Board, has 4

gone through the BCC and is basically in that 09:20AM 5

30-day period before the State or how many 6

days do they have to respond?7

MR. VICKERY:  I don't remember the days.  8

It's been in their hands for at least two 9

weeks now.  09:20AM 10

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  11

MR. VICKERY:  But the proposed rezoning is 12

based on the proposed Future Land Use change.  13

That's one of the few conditions that are 14

allowed regarding rezoning.  09:20AM 15

This is the current zoning, the 500-foot 16

radius.  This is the signage.  I posted two 17

signs because the property has about a quarter 18

of a mile frontage on Tower Ridge Road.  This 19

is the southeast corner.  Now looking from 09:21AM 20

that sign northward along Tower Ridge Road and 21

then south.  22

I will make a comment that other than the 23

signs, these other photos are from the 24

previous case, so that tree is not in bloom 09:21AM 25
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today.  1

Then this is looking across Tower Ridge 2

Road again at the southeast corner into the 3

property.  This is the northern sign.  Then 4

looking north toward Frank Reeder Road.  Then 09:21AM 5

south back toward Nine Mile and Mobile 6

Highway.  Then across Tower Ridge westward 7

into the property.  Again, the 500-foot radius 8

and then following all the property owners who 9

were notified based on the property 09:22AM 10

appraiser's records.  11

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Would the applicant 12

please come forward or applicant's 13

representative, I'm sorry.  14

MR. TATE:  Because you are appearing as a 09:22AM 15

witness in this case we will ask that you be 16

sworn in. 17

(Kerry Anne Schultz sworn.) 18

MR. TATE:  Would you please state your 19

full name and address for the record? 09:22AM 20

MS. SCHULTZ:  Kerry Anne Schultz, 3869 21

Paradise Bay Drive, Gulf Breeze, Florida 22

32563.23

MR. TATE:  Have you received a copy of the 24

Rezoning Hearing Package with the 09:22AM 25
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Findings-of-Fact? 1

MS. SCHULTZ:  I have.2

MR. TATE:  Do you understand that you have 3

the burden of providing substantial competent 4

evidence that the proposed rezoning is 09:22AM 5

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 6

furthers the goals, objectives and policies of 7

the Comprehensive Plan and is not in conflict 8

with any portion of the County's Land 9

Development Code?  09:23AM 10

MS. SCHULTZ:  I do. 11

MR. TATE:  Would you please proceed with 12

your presentation.  13

MS. SCHULTZ:  Thank you, Mr. Tate.  And 14

Mr. Tate, thank you and fellow Board members 09:23AM 15

for actually clarifying that we did come 16

before this Honorable Board and was approved 17

by the Board of County Commissioners for a 18

Future Land Use amendment which was done 19

previously and that's currently pending with 09:23AM 20

the State.  We're still within our 45 days for 21

that, so thank you for mentioning that.  22

Thank you, Mr. Vickery.  We appreciate the 23

staff's comments.  By way of background let me 24

just tell you I have the pleasure of 09:23AM 25
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representing Olson Land Partners and they 1

developed Vintage Creek Subdivision, which 2

came before this Board sometime ago, a 3

beautiful larger estate that's next to the 4

area.  09:23AM 5

If we could go ahead and put up just by 6

way of the surrounding properties.  So when 7

all the zoning categories changed we had to 8

somewhat go backwards and figure for both 9

projects what we were going to do and I think 09:23AM 10

it's relevant for me to go ahead and lay that 11

foundation before I get into why we meet the 12

six criterion and why this Board should go 13

ahead and approve our request for LDMU.  14

First of all, the Vintage Creek property 09:24AM 15

is to the south.  It's also in the same FLUM, 16

which is MU-S.  Of course, ours is pending, 17

but we are seeking the Mixed Use Suburban.  18

The old category for Vintage Creek was R-3.  19

The new is MBR.  The subject parcel, the is 09:24AM 20

old R-R and the new is MU.  We are asking that 21

this Honorable Board agree to our rezoning 22

request for LDMU even though the staff has 23

made logical and rational conclusions why LDR 24

would be the best for this category.  Let's 09:24AM 25
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talk about that.  1

MR. TATE:  Can you put up the zoning map?  2

MS. SCHULTZ:  Thank you, Mr. Tate.  When 3

we sat down and we realized that obviously the 4

zoning categories have changed, initially for 09:24AM 5

this development we were going to come before 6

this Honorable Board and seek R-3.  The 7

developer at the time was looking at the 8

demands of the current new hirings of Navy 9

Federal.  These two subdivisions were built in 09:25AM 10

mind to accommodate the influx of individuals 11

who will be hired by Navy Federal and other 12

businesses that will bring money to Escambia 13

County.  So you have Vintage Creek to the 14

south and you have this subject parcel to the 09:25AM 15

north, both properties developed by our client 16

Olson.  17

With that in mind, Vintage Creek 18

Subdivision is MDR.  The client did not want 19

to put town homes in that.  We wanted to have 09:25AM 20

a price point for your coming to town we want 21

to capture both audiences of different price 22

points with respect to both developments.  So 23

Vintage Creek being MDR, which would 24

accommodate town homes, the developer decided 09:25AM 25
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not to do that and they went forward with more 1

larger estate lots or a 70-foot lot concept.  2

So this project that I'm here before you 3

today that the current zoning is RMU, 4

previously R-R, we would like to do 100 town 09:26AM 5

homes, but we would like to look at just 6

single-family homes, as well, providing those 7

potential new employees of these thriving 8

businesses to have an opportunity of what they 9

wanted.  09:26AM 10

Well, in looking at staff's comments what 11

I want to mention to you with LDMU what's 12

important to know, that's what we're seeking 13

today, is you have seven units per acre, which 14

is a mix of residential and commercial.  09:26AM 15

However, our client desires no commercial, 16

none whatsoever.  Even though LDMU provides 17

for a mix of residential and commercial, the 18

only thing -- why my client is interested in 19

LDMU is it's really the only niche category 09:26AM 20

that provides for a few town homes.  The 21

design of this project conceptually is not do 22

100 percent town homes.  It is designed with 23

the understanding of doing some town homes to 24

accommodate these new individuals coming to 09:27AM 25
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our community, but also providing your smaller 1

lots with the complimentary Vintage Creek. 2

So while the staff recommendation would 3

afford for LDR, an LDR zoning category would 4

not support town homes.  So obviously I'm 09:27AM 5

coming before you today recognizing that the 6

staff has looked at the six criteria and in 7

every criteria has determined well, LDR would 8

be an alternative.  9

Now, one would ask, Ms. Schultz, wouldn't 09:27AM 10

just you agree with LDR?  That's what the 11

staff is recommending.  The only reason we are 12

not in favor of LDR on the onset is because 13

LDMU provides for the town home concept, where 14

LDR does not.  And we're not asking to go up 09:27AM 15

in the density, which would be the neighboring 16

Vintage Creek, which is MDR, because town 17

homes would not be permissible because you had 18

to previously be zoned R-3, which the subject 19

parcel is not.  09:28AM 20

So one would say, Ms. Schultz, just change 21

Vintage Creek, just change Vintage Creek and 22

do town homes there because you can with MDR.  23

Well, we would have to change engineering and 24

all of that.  Technically we could do that.  09:28AM 25
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We could flip these projects and County staff 1

is aware that we could do that.  To ask a 2

developer to do that costs hundreds and 3

thousands of dollars to change engineering and 4

design.  We are wanting you to look at both 09:28AM 5

projects together even though what's before 6

this Board is the new project, because we 7

can't do the town home with LDR, which is what 8

the staff would like us to do, and we can't do 9

RMU, but if we switch the projects we could do 09:28AM 10

different products.11

So I need this Board to understand that -- 12

and this is my gosh not a threat by any 13

stretch of the imagination -- we're just 14

trying to accommodate the different price 09:29AM 15

points for prospective employees that will be 16

relocating to our area.  So we could change 17

Vintage Creek.  Instead of doing the large 18

lots with the estate flair, we could simply do 19

town homes.  We could do -- in fact, we could 09:29AM 20

do 1,340 units, but that's not what we desire 21

to do.  22

So before I get to the criteria just 23

briefly in summary of why LDMU works is 24

because there really is no other category 09:29AM 25
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that's like the previous R-3.  It would be 1

simple to have gone from R-R to R-3, because 2

we could do the town homes.  But when the Land 3

Development Code changed to look at the zoning 4

categories, we struggled with trying to figure 09:29AM 5

out what could we do because we don't want to 6

do commercial.  So part of me wants to come 7

before this Board and say, hey, please give us 8

LDMU.  We won't let you down.  We'll stick 9

with the town home concept just with the 09:30AM 10

hundred, do the smaller lots, no commercial, 11

and if we could make that contingent.  12

So let's go into the six criterion on why 13

we believe we have satisfied the six criterion 14

for this Honorable Board to vote in favor of 09:30AM 15

the LDMU request. 16

Number one.  Is it consistent with the 17

Comprehensive Plan?  Absolutely.  Now keep in 18

mind we still have pending before the State 19

our FLUM amendment, which would make us MU-S, 09:30AM 20

so to the extent that's approved, which I have 21

a good feeling it will be, that would allow 22

for 25 units per acre, which allows for the 23

mixed use of residential and commercial.  24

LDM provides for seven units per acre, the 09:30AM 25
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mix of residential and commercial.  We do not 1

want to do commercial, but it's the only 2

category that would allow our client to have 3

some of the town home concept within the 4

beautiful development mixed with single-family 09:31AM 5

dwellings.  6

Now, this Honorable Board had the 7

opportunity at the FLUM hearing to do the 8

MU-S, to review utility and service letters 9

that were previously provided.  So we believe 09:31AM 10

that under the Comprehensive Plan, to the 11

extent that the State approves that, that we 12

will be compatible with the Comprehensive 13

Plan. 14

Now, the staff, the only negative thing 09:31AM 15

that the staff mentions in its finding about 16

inconsistency with the Comp Plan is the 17

compatibility with infill would not be 18

promoted by the range of LDMU allowed uses.  19

Well, just reading that sentence there 09:31AM 20

indicates that there's this misunderstanding 21

that we want to do commercial and that's not 22

the case.  In fact, we are willing to go 23

forward and say, even though, if this is voted 24

today and goes before the Board of County 09:31AM 25
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Commissioners and voted yes, we can stipulate 1

to no commercial.  We do not want any 2

commercial.  Let's just make that known.  3

MR. TATE:  Just let me interject for the 4

Board members.  While that may be stipulated 09:32AM 5

that's not a condition that we can make our 6

decision on, so just keep that in mind as we 7

go forward.8

MS. SCHULTZ:  Thank you, Mr. Tate.  I 9

appreciate that.  09:32AM 10

So we do believe that we are consistent 11

with the Comprehensive Plan.  So once you have 12

MU-S, we believe that even though we can't 13

stipulate, to the extent that you understand 14

we're not going to do commercial, this 09:32AM 15

developer has no desire to do commercial, 16

retail, anything, it is simply for 17

single-family homes or multifamily use. 18

Number two.  Are we consistent with the 19

Land Development Code?  We believe we are.  09:32AM 20

This request is consistent with the Land 21

Development Code because it allows the 22

district to develop a complimentary mix of low 23

density residential uses.  24

Now, think about this.  This is very 09:32AM 25

850.434.5954/800.321.5954 - REPORTERS@TAYLORREPORTINGSERVICES.COM

56

important.  The surrounding uses -- and we'll 1

get to that criteria here in a second -- the 2

County actually owns property that abuts this 3

property, and this is important, and it is 4

zoned LDMU.  So you have LDMU here that 09:33AM 5

Escambia County owns and we're right next 6

door.  We are simply asking to have that same 7

zoning category.  And by the way Vintage 8

Creek, which is zoned MDR, that's our client's 9

project, as well, so it is compatible with the 09:33AM 10

Land Development Code.  As I mentioned, we 11

could have asked for the prior zoning category 12

R-3, which the developer to the south has, 13

which is our client.  14

Now, keep in mind under the Land 09:33AM 15

Development Code you have to look at under the 16

new zoning categories whether or not we meet 17

the same location criteria.  That's important.  18

So that's a subset requirement that I have to 19

tell you today of why we meet that.  Well, in 09:33AM 20

looking at locational criteria, looking at 21

nonresidential, we plan on doing 100 percent 22

residential.  So even though LDMU if approved 23

would allow for commercial, we're representing 24

to you we're not going to do commercial.  But 09:34AM 25
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even if we did, which we're not, we still 1

believe that the location criteria could be 2

met. 3

Number three, compatibility with 4

surrounding uses.  If we look at the map, and 09:34AM 5

I've already represented to you and Griffin 6

has represented, as well, if you look at the 7

map you will see Vintage Creek, which I've 8

mentioned is MDR, the County property which is 9

right next door which is LDMU and our property 09:34AM 10

and our property right now is RMU.  We are 11

simply asking it to be LDMU.  So compatibility 12

with the surrounding uses, we can satisfy 13

that.  Remember, the three sides to the 14

subject property are similar in zoning exist.  09:34AM 15

The properties bordering to the east are 16

currently zoned Low Density Mixed Use, which 17

includes the County's property, and Low 18

Density Residential.  The properties to the 19

north are zoned Low Density Residential.  The 09:35AM 20

117 acre property directly to the south, which 21

is also our client's, which is known as 22

Vintage Creek, is MDR.  23

What's also important, fellow Board 24

members, is that there's not -- the 09:35AM 25
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significant nonresidential use exists 1

approximately 2,500 feet to the south along 2

Nine Mile Road.  That's important.  So 3

compatibility with the surrounding area, 4

especially in light of the County owned 09:35AM 5

property, the LDMU, right next door, there's 6

no greater evidence to suggest that we can 7

meet that criteria just based on location and 8

surrounding uses.9

Number four, changed conditions.  As 09:35AM 10

Mr. Tate already mentioned, the recent FLUM 11

amendment change occurred.  We're still 12

awaiting State approval.  However, what's 13

important to know is that Vintage Creek, also 14

owned by our client, it also had a FLUM change 09:36AM 15

so that property received a development order 16

for a single-family residential subdivision, 17

but it's zoned MDR, which is Medium Density 18

Residential, which allows ten units per acre.19

Now, our client, as I mentioned, could 09:36AM 20

just flip these projects and we wouldn't have 21

to come before you all today and do what we 22

need to do.  However, we are asking to keep 23

Vintage Creek in its current MDR even though 24

we are not maximizing what we could do on that 09:36AM 25
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property.  We could do 1,340 units, but we've 1

chosen not to even though the zoning category 2

supports that type of higher development.  3

Number five, effect on the natural 4

environment.  I think staff would possibly 09:36AM 5

agree with us.  There's 80 acres 6

approximately.  No known wetlands are located 7

near the property.  When we submitted our 8

package for the FLUM amendment we clearly had 9

letters from Escambia County and ECUA that no 09:37AM 10

wellheads are in the project vicinity.  The 11

closest are five miles away, so we don't 12

believe that there is going to be any issue 13

with respect to that.  14

The State of Florida Division of 09:37AM 15

Historical Resources was contacted during the 16

FLUM amendment process and there wasn't any 17

historical significance, discovery of any 18

items that would likely be impacted by this 19

development.  20

Criterion Number Six, development 21

patterns.  We believe that the proposed zoning 22

request is consistent with the development 23

patterns in the area.  Development has 24

occurred westerly along Nine Mile with a 09:37AM 25
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mixture of residential and nonresidential 1

uses.  The proposed zoning request would also 2

allow a compatible mixture of residential and 3

nonresidential uses.  4

So let's go back just quickly in summary.  09:37AM 5

We've worked very closely with staff and we 6

highly respect and value the staff's opinion.  7

We do believe LDMU, although the staff's 8

opinion would basically suggest the 9

alternative, which is LDR.  The only issue 09:38AM 10

with LDR, we could go with LDR, that's not a 11

problem, it's just the issue we can't do the 12

town homes.  So if we were before you today 13

and we didn't already have Vintage Creek 14

subdivision with the larger estates, the 70 09:38AM 15

lots, giving these owners more land and 16

beautiful estate looking type properties -- 17

and I have marketing materials on that -- is 18

this concept wasn't already in the works, we 19

could just flip these projects and do the town 09:38AM 20

homes on this.  21

But we would like to do LDMU, representing 22

to you, although no stipulations are 23

permissible, so that we can do the town homes 24

and it will be a beautiful project with the 09:38AM 25
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mixture.  And all we're trying to do is 1

accommodate those potential employees that are 2

relocating to our area that will bring money 3

into our area to have a different mix of do 4

you want the estate looking property, do you 09:39AM 5

want more of a townhouse, others.6

We believe we've met the six criteria.  We 7

really want to change the zoning today.  If 8

this Honorable Board is completely against the 9

LDMU, even though the County property next to 09:39AM 10

this parcel is LDMU, we would consider LDR, 11

which would force us to go back to do a PUD, 12

which this Board -- Mr. Tate, I know you're 13

shaking your head, because that is something 14

we could do.  It's just we selected LDMU 09:39AM 15

because when the zoning changed there wasn't a 16

niche category.  Like R-3 was so great and I 17

always used R-3 because it really would 18

accommodate this, but the problem is that LDMU 19

throws in the commercial aspect.  We're not 09:39AM 20

going to do commercial, but it's really the 21

only category that allows us to do the town 22

home concept, which this will not be a full 23

town home.  24

I believe I've satisfied the six criteria.  09:39AM 25
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I want to be careful because I have this 1

feeling that the State is just going to vote 2

yes and support the County's vote with respect 3

to our FLUM change.  I don't want that to 4

affect today's meeting, but if you're going in 09:40AM 5

a direction that says LDMU would be -- that we 6

have not met that burden, then I would like to 7

consider as an alternative LDR and see if 8

maybe we can get the town homes approved 9

through the PUD process and welcome any 09:40AM 10

questions at this time.  11

MR. TATE:  Staff, do you have any 12

questions of the applicant?  13

MR. VICKERY:  No.  14

MR. TATE:  At this time we'll go ahead and 09:40AM 15

allow the staff to do their presentation. 16

(Presentation by Griffin Vickery, 17

previously sworn.) 18

MR. VICKERY:  So you've been provided with 19

the findings that we prepared for this Case 09:40AM 20

Z-2015-12 and I'll go through those. 21

The first being consistency with the 22

Comprehensive Plan.  The findings are that the 23

proposed rezoning is not consistent mainly due 24

to the requirement that the infill be 09:41AM 25
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compatible with what's surrounding.  There's 1

not an issue with the increased density that's 2

allowed by the proposed Future Land Use, and 3

there's not an issue or conflict with the uses 4

overall that the Future Land Use would allow, 09:41AM 5

but in this location there is not an 6

appropriate promotion of compatible uses by 7

this proposed change in zoning.  We did 8

suggest to the applicant, based on this and 9

other criteria, that Low Density Residential 09:41AM 10

would be appropriate for a rezoning category.  11

The second criteria is the rezoning being 12

consistent with the Land Development Code.  13

The findings are that it's not consistent with 14

the Land Development Code.  It doesn't 09:42AM 15

implement the primary intent of the requested 16

Low Density Mixed Use district.  That can't be 17

fulfilled at this location, can't provide a 18

greater mix of neighborhood retail sales and 19

services, professional offices and greater 09:42AM 20

dwelling unit diversity.  Some of those 21

aspects can be, but not entirely.  22

And as I believe the Chairman stated in 23

the previous rezoning case, you have to look 24

at all of the uses that would be available in 09:42AM 25
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the proposed rezoning.  You consider all of 1

them.  2

The code says that rezoning to this 3

proposed Low Density Mixed Use District is 4

appropriate where there is a pattern of 09:43AM 5

well-connected streets, but these surrounding 6

streets just get by, they're in bold, national 7

land survey 30 foot rights-of-way.  So there's 8

just enough room for some pavement.  There 9

really is not a system of well-connected 09:43AM 10

streets here that would support this zoning 11

district.  12

The district is also indicated by the code 13

to be appropriate to provide a separation 14

between suburban and urban uses.  That 09:43AM 15

function isn't applicable here either.  16

The consistency with other purposes of the 17

code would be confirmed should any proposed 18

development be reviewed, but these are the 19

basic requirements of the Land Development 09:43AM 20

Code that come forward when you're looking at 21

rezoning and we just don't find support for 22

those.  23

The third criterion, compatible with the 24

surrounding uses, the findings are that all 09:44AM 25
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the land uses and development activities and 1

conditions that are allowed by the proposed 2

zoning are not compatible with the surrounding 3

conforming uses and activities. 4

The Low Density Mixed Use, unlike the 09:44AM 5

current Rural Mixed Use and even the suggested 6

Low Density Residential, would bring in uses 7

like expanded manufactured home parks and 8

subdivisions, new or expanding, townhouses, as 9

has been mentioned is the intent of this 09:44AM 10

particular applicant, zero lot line 11

subdivisions, and then retail sales and 12

services within neighborhood retail centers.  13

These uses and activities in their entirety 14

are not appropriate at this location.  09:45AM 15

The fourth criterion is changed conditions 16

and there has been, as the applicant referred 17

to, a recent -- both the recent recommended 18

change in the Future Land Use, but also the 19

approval of the single-family residential 09:45AM 20

subdivision adjoining this property to the 21

south.  22

Let me explain, at this point this current 23

medium density residential that applies to 24

that area, that property was already zoned 09:45AM 25
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R-3.  There was not a zoning change to R-3.  1

So the Future Land Use Map was pursued and 2

approved that allowed more than the two 3

dwelling units per acre that the previous 4

Rural Community Future Land Use category 09:46AM 5

allowed.  The R-3 zoning, our best 6

determination is that's what it's been all 7

along.  8

From a planning perspective and in that 9

overall area, it's out of place.  The reason 09:46AM 10

as I see that it doesn't support a change is 11

that the development that's been approved for 12

that is really a Low Density Residential 13

development.  It's not a medium density 14

residential development.  The final product 09:46AM 15

was development that was less than two units 16

per acre on approximately quarter acre lots.  17

So that fits squarely within the Low Density 18

Residential type of zoning.  So simply because 19

that area is zoned medium density doesn't, in 09:47AM 20

my mind, support extension of that or even a 21

similar zoning for this adjoining property.  22

On that same topic of what's there around 23

it and what supports rezoning that Low Density 24

Mixed Use parcel is County property.  It's a 09:47AM 25
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former borrow pit.  My understanding from 1

speaking with someone in Public Works that 2

there is no active mining of the land.  It's 3

used as a storage area for rework concrete 4

pipe and milled asphalt that might be used for 09:47AM 5

road maintenance in the area. 6

The zoning that was applied to it resulted 7

from the zoning consolidation.  When that 8

process was going on there was no intent to 9

have or to retain a public zoning district.  09:47AM 10

That is probably the more appropriate 11

application to that site, but because it 12

already had a nonresidential use, it was given 13

or allocated that Low Density Mixed Use zoning 14

to retain some nonresidential use and to be 15

consistent with the Future Land Use. 16

The fifth criterion, development patterns, 17

the finding is that the proposed amendment 18

would not result in a logical and orderly 19

development pattern due to the incompatible 09:48AM 20

land uses and residential density that it 21

would allow. 22

The final category, effect on the natural 23

environment, the finding is that the proposed 24

rezoning would not increase the probability of 09:48AM 25
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significant adverse impacts to the natural 1

environment.  The wetlands that are on site 2

would have to be addressed by any proposed 3

development plan that would proceed and there 4

are County ordinances that deal with that.  09:49AM 5

Staff has no other comments regarding the 6

findings that you've been provided. 7

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  8

Ms. Schultz, do you have any examination 9

of the staff witness?  09:49AM 10

MS. SCHULTZ:  Just one. 11

Mr. Vickery, even though the staff 12

comments are not in support of establishing 13

the criteria for LDMU, would the staff support 14

LDR?  09:49AM 15

MR. VICKERY:  Yes, the findings were 16

written to indicate that that would be an 17

appropriate alternative zoning district 18

consistent with the Comp Plan and the code and 19

the other criteria that are listed in the Land 09:49AM 20

Development Code. 21

MS. SCHULTZ:  Thank you.  22

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  23

Do you have anything further for the 24

Board?  09:50AM 25
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MR. VICKERY:  No.  Again, those findings 1

were included providing that alternative 2

zoning. 3

MR. TATE:  For those members of the public 4

who wish to speak on this matter please note 09:50AM 5

that the Planning Board bases its decision on 6

the approval of the conditions and exceptions 7

described in Section 2.07.2 of the Escambia 8

County Land Development Code.  During it's 9

deliberations the Planning Board will not 09:50AM 10

consider general statements of support or 11

opposition.  Accordingly, please limit your 12

testimony to the approval of the conditions 13

and exceptions described in 2.07.2.  Please 14

also note that only those individuals who are 09:50AM 15

present and give testimony before the Board at 16

this hearing before the Planning Board will be 17

allowed to speak at the subsequent hearing 18

before the BCC.19

There are four individuals who have signed 09:50AM 20

up to speak or five.  The first one is 21

actually, Tommy Brown, Escambia County Traffic 22

Department.  Are you still in the building?  23

(Tommy Brown, previously sworn.) 24

MR. BROWN:  Tommy Brown.  I work in the 09:51AM 25
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transportation traffic operations.  I just 1

wanted to put on the record that there may be 2

a need for a right-of-way donation along Tower 3

Ridge Road, so I just wanted to let the 4

developer and their agent know that before 09:51AM 5

they come to the DRC. 6

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  I believe two of 7

those are actually the applicant or a business 8

associate.  Jason Rebol.  No comment?  Okay.9

Paul Battle?  No comment.  09:51AM 10

Rick Olson?  No comment.  11

All right.  Our final is Edward Morgan.  12

Mr. Morgan, please come forward.  Could you 13

state your full name and address for the 14

record and be sworn in.  09:52AM 15

MR. MORGAN:  Edward G. Morgan, 9755 Tower 16

Ridge Road.  17

(Edward G. Morgan sworn.) 18

MR. MORGAN:  First I'll comment that -- 19

especially the speakers that have been turned 09:52AM 20

this way, I'm used to public speaking, but I 21

noticed it's almost impossible to hear even 22

you up there.  There's something wrong with 23

the speaker system. 24

But I have objections.  I understand 09:52AM 25
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already it's permitted to build two dwelling 1

units per acre; is that correct?  2

MR. TATE:  I believe that's on the portion 3

that's already previously approved.  What's 4

the density on the current zoning for the case 09:53AM 5

before us today?  6

MR. VICKERY:  The Rural Mixed Use zoning 7

that's currently there allows two units per 8

acre.  However, with the change in the Future 9

Land Use there is a conflict until that 09:53AM 10

conflict is somehow addressed because of the 11

overlap, if you will, in the maximum and 12

minimum densities required by the two Future 13

Land Use categories.  So let me put it more 14

simply.  If they get the Future Land Use, go 09:53AM 15

forward with the Future Land Use amendment, 16

it's approved, they would need rezoning of 17

some form.  18

MR. TATE:  Okay.  19

MR. MORGAN:  I have comments and I have 09:54AM 20

questions still, also.  If this unit is built, 21

is there some provision for correcting the 22

drainage situation?  We have a terrible 23

drainage situation.  There's no ditches to the 24

road and I've suffered with that on my place 09:54AM 25
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for years. 1

MR. TATE:  Unfortunately for us, in front 2

of us at this Board, we can't consider the 3

conditions that maybe have to change or 4

improve before something can be done.  Those 09:54AM 5

actually occur after both this hearing and the 6

next hearing before the Board of County 7

Commissioners.  Then the applicant is actually 8

required to come back to staff and meet with 9

them in what's called the development review 09:55AM 10

and that's a public hearing, as well, and 11

that's where those issues are addressed from 12

the technical perspective of what has to be 13

done both in and around their properties to 14

meet the conditions of the County in order to 09:55AM 15

build.  16

MR. MORGAN:  And the planners for it, is 17

there going -- we have no public sewage.  The 18

more houses you build out there with septic 19

tanks, it's going to present a great problem.  09:55AM 20

And another problem I have with it is the 21

pollution of a stream that gets up -- goes 22

down one line of my place and crosses the 23

back, goes into that beautiful creek, clear 24

creek that runs into Perdido River, and if 09:56AM 25
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there's no provision made for drainage, 1

pollution will be a problem in that beautiful 2

stream. 3

And I think of an old proverb that I've 4

been hearing all of my life, woe unto them 09:56AM 5

that join house to house and field to field.  6

There will be no place left alone in the 7

earth.  The more people you get in a 8

community, the living conditions get worse.  9

You have problems with children being raised 09:56AM 10

so close together.  The morals go down.  The 11

quality of living goes down the thicker it 12

gets and we have proof of that in some of the 13

thick sections already and some of the 14

problems that the police are already having 09:57AM 15

with these people where there's just so many 16

people living in the same area.  17

I've been out there more than 43 years and 18

I moved out there to get away from these kind 19

of living conditions.  And I can understand 09:57AM 20

that there has to be some development, but I'm 21

strictly opposed to having seven dwelling 22

units per acre.  23

MR. TATE:  Thank you, Mr. Morgan.24

MR. MORGAN:  I thank you.  09:57AM 25
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MR. TATE:  Does the applicant wish to make 1

any further comments or address any issues 2

that were brought up by this individual?  3

MS. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  Just as this nice 4

gentleman had mentioned and just so this Board 09:58AM 5

knows and I'm sure you recognize that drainage 6

will be provided per code within the 7

subdivision.  The engineer is here.  There 8

will be obviously public -- the great thing 9

about Vintage Creek with that is that there 09:58AM 10

will be a public sewage just as Vintage Creek, 11

so we can possibly, I don't know if that can 12

be tapped in or not.  That's an engineering 13

question.  But that will already be 14

accommodated.  09:58AM 15

Clearly we're going to protect the 16

wetlands.  There are wetlands that will be 17

protected, as this Board knows that we can't 18

get to the next level without that, and that 19

will be honored and protected according to the 09:58AM 20

code.  21

We also acknowledge that there are some 22

road improvements that may be required by the 23

developer and as Mr. Tate properly stated 24

these are things that have to go through the 09:58AM 25
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process once the change is made.  So just to 1

go ahead and say we recognize certain things 2

will have to be done to make this project 3

under the code, as well as other agencies 4

concerns and those will be addressed. 09:58AM 5

I do want to make it very clear to this 6

Board, while I appreciate and respect the 7

staff's comments, we really want LDMU because 8

it's really the only category niche to do what 9

we want to do on this property so we don't 09:59AM 10

have to split the project because that's what 11

may have to do.  We don't want to do that.  So 12

to accommodate the town homes, knowing that 13

there's not going to be commercial, we want to 14

make it very clear that this Board look at 09:59AM 15

that we've met the six criteria, especially in 16

the light that the County property next to 17

this property is LDMU.  And while the County 18

has no desire to develop that property right 19

now, it's not known to be that they desire to 09:59AM 20

develop it, it could sell that property and 21

the subsequent bona fide purchaser could do 22

something with that property.  23

So for that reason and all the other five 24

criteria that I've gone over, we believe we 09:59AM 25
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meet LDMU.  However, I don't want to slow this 1

project down.  There is a demand for homes in 2

this area.  I think you all know the quality 3

of my client.  This developer has built Water 4

Color, has done so much in our area here all 09:59AM 5

the way the Florida north coast here and does 6

a very very good job and high end projects.  7

We want to provide an accommodation for those 8

buyers at different price points and different 9

needs and that's we why wanted to do more of 10:00AM 10

the town home concept here.  11

If it goes in the direction that this 12

Honorable Board says, Ms. Schultz, we're not 13

going to do LDMU, I really need to tell you 14

that we would consider LDR, but that would be 10:00AM 15

the only alternative so that we can get 16

ourselves out of the RMU or we can't develop 17

this property.  So I'm coming to you saying, 18

gosh, I wish there was a middle ground between 19

LDR and LDMU that allowed for town homes.  10:00AM 20

There's not.  Because we don't want to do 21

commercial.  And it may be that we didn't 22

foresee that that would be an issue.  I think 23

we're probably the first ones that are going 24

through.  I think there's probably going to be 10:00AM 25
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others potentially out there that find 1

themselves that say, I don't want to do 2

commercial.  I don't.  But I also want to do 3

the multifamily, but not the entire project, 4

so I'm stuck.  10:01AM 5

So I respect and I appreciate staff's 6

comments.  I definitely think we have made our 7

case satisfying the six criteria for LDMU.  8

You have our word we're not going to do 9

commercial.  I know we can't stipulate to 10:01AM 10

that.  It would be great to, because we would.  11

So please take that into consideration.  12

I don't want this to be a flat out denial 13

today.  I don't want to hold this project up.  14

But LDMU is what we want, but we would 10:01AM 15

consider, if this Board would like to consider 16

a LDR concept.  We appreciate your time.  17

MR. TATE:  Board members, do you have any 18

questions for the applicant, staff or members 19

of the public?10:01AM 20

MR. CORDES:  I do.  The donation of 21

right-of-way is so that in the future if you 22

want to run sewer up Tower Ridge Road it would 23

allow it because you only have a 30-foot 24

right-of-way; is that correct?  I guess it's 10:01AM 25
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for staff.  1

MS. SCHULTZ:  Do you mind if I bring the 2

engineer?  3

MR. BROWN:  We have standard -- 4

MR. TATE:  Could you wait until you reach 5

the mike?  Again, Mr. Brown.6

MR. BROWN:  I mean, we have standard 7

right-of-way widths that are required by the 8

County, 50 feet if it's curb and gutters, 66 9

feet if it's an open swale.  And the 10:02AM 10

right-of-way is needed for public utilities 11

and drainage and a myriad of other things, so 12

we just like to get a standard width so that 13

we have room for future improvement.14

MR. CORDES:  So you require, I guess, ten 10:02AM 15

feet on that site from this landowner and ten 16

on the other?  17

MR. BROWN:  I'm not exactly sure right 18

now, but more than likely something like that 19

ten foot strip.10:02AM 20

MR. CORDES:  And then I guess my question 21

is to the gentleman's question about septic 22

tanks, I mean, if this developer does this and 23

sewage keeps coming north it makes it more 24

affordable for those who are on septic tanks 10:02AM 25
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is the way I picture development.  Is that a 1

correct statement?  2

MR. BROWN:  Yes.  I'm not sure of all the 3

rules, but if -- 4

MR. CORDES:  But Vintage Creek is on 10:03AM 5

public sewer, it's not septic; is that 6

correct?  7

MR. BROWN:  Yes. 8

MR. CORDES:  You don't need to comment to 9

my statement.  I guess it is a statement that 10:03AM 10

I'm making that as you develop and you bring 11

subdivisions with sewage, you know, public 12

sewer, you're helping those rural areas who 13

are currently on septic tanks.  It makes it 14

more affordable is what I'm getting at. 10:03AM 15

MR. BROWN:  And you need a right-of-way.  16

MR. CORDES:  The right-of-way you've got 17

to have to do that. 18

MR. BROWN:  Yes, sir.19

MR. CORDES:  Okay. 20

MR. WINGATE:  I have a question. 21

MR. TATE:  Hold on just a moment, please. 22

Mr. Brown, thank you.  23

Did the project engineer have anything 24

that you would like him to state on the 10:03AM 25
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record?  1

MS. SCHULTZ:  If I can go ahead and speak 2

for the engineer, can I do that? 3

MR. TATE:  Sure.  4

MS. SCHULTZ:  And to clarify your 10:03AM 5

question, a very good question, we've already 6

anticipated your concern and as you know the 7

developer as part of the development process 8

can donate certain land and we already had 9

that conceptually, thinking that we would need 10:04AM 10

to do that to accommodate the right-of-way.  11

And the great thing, Mr. Cordes, is that 12

the fact that the same developer owns Vintage 13

Creek, there could be some accommodations on 14

that site, as well.  So we're situated in a 10:04AM 15

way that we can take the north and the south 16

property, do what we need to do to meet the 17

requirements, and we've already warned the 18

client that a donation of property to 19

accommodate right-of-way is likely. 10:04AM 20

MR. TATE:  Mr. Wingate.  21

MR. WINGATE:  My concern, I was viewing 22

the site review, I kind of being -- my 23

background has partially been a developer of 24

several subdivisions that I've done and the 10:04AM 25

850.434.5954/800.321.5954 - REPORTERS@TAYLORREPORTINGSERVICES.COM 
 
GMR: 08-06-15 Rezoning Case Z-2015-12 Attachment

 
 
11 of 68



PLANNING BOARD REZONING HEARINGS - JUNE 2, 2015

21 of 39 sheets Page 81 to 84 of 101 06/14/2015 07:10:07 PM

81

first thing you look at -- and I had an 1

opportunity to talk to one of the landowners 2

that was a businessman out there, very 3

successful, and he shared a conversation that 4

he had with the head of Navy Federal and he 10:05AM 5

was telling me some data that -- and I happen 6

to serve on another committee that there's 7

going to be two new schools built in the area.  8

That's going to make a big demand and he 9

said -- 10:05AM 10

MR. TATE:  Mr. Wingate, before you go 11

further, I'm not sure if you've crossed the 12

line in ex parte communication.  I would ask 13

for some clarification.14

MS. SMITH:  As long as he's disclosing the 10:05AM 15

conversation that he had and so if there's 16

questions about the conversation that he's had 17

they can -- both the parties can ask questions 18

and have that flushed out on the record.19

My concern more so at this point is the 10:05AM 20

relevance of the Navy Federal development to 21

whether or not this parcel meets the criteria 22

that's before the Board for consideration.  23

So if there are questions about the 24

conversation that he had, those can be asked 10:06AM 25
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at this time.1

MR. WINGATE:  I'll just hold my 2

conversation.  3

MR. TATE:  Do you have any other comments 4

or questions for the applicant?  10:06AM 5

MR. WINGATE:  No, not at this point.  6

MR. TATE:  Mr. Rushing?  7

MR. RUSHING:  Yeah.  Is it an overlook -- 8

this is for the staff.  Is this an overlook or 9

just now brought up that the townhouse was 10:06AM 10

only included in this?  Kind of give me some 11

background since I'm kind of new to this of 12

how the townhouse was included into commercial 13

use. 14

MR. TATE:  Well, one thing I can state 10:06AM 15

here, this is our first day to do rezonings 16

with what would be considered our consolidated 17

rezonings, so this is actually our first look 18

at them in use.  We've looked at the practical 19

nature of them over the last five-and-a-half 10:07AM 20

year.  Actually dealing with them is 21

different.  You remember at our last meeting 22

there were a couple -- one of the rezonings 23

actually went away because they now met these.  24

Now we're kind of faced with the opposite 10:07AM 25
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where probably an R-3 would still work in that 1

area or what would have been R-3, but because 2

of this I don't know if staff can explain the 3

nature of that particular consolidation where 4

the townhouse concept went to I guess what 10:07AM 5

would be considered R-4, R-5, R-6 as opposed 6

to a R-1, R-2, R-3.  Is that really what's 7

happened?  8

MR. VICKERY:  The R-3 was combined with, 9

relying on memory, I think R-2 and a couple of 10:07AM 10

other zoning districts that did not allow town 11

homes to accommodate.  So to accommodate 12

allowing town homes in the consolidated 13

district, the district says if you formerly 14

had R-3 or any other district that allowed a 10:08AM 15

town home, then you could have it in the new 16

consolidated district, but it did not bring in 17

or allow town homes in the other areas that 18

formerly did not have them. 19

MR. TATE:  And this was formerly -- what 10:08AM 20

was the prior zoning?  21

MS. SCHULTZ:  R-R. 22

MR. TATE:  This was R-R, so it was less 23

intense. 24

MR. VICKERY:  The property to the south, 10:08AM 25
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that was R-3. 1

MR. TATE:  Which is now the MDR.  2

MR. PYLE:  The difference, if you could 3

clarify, staff, you know this answer already, 4

but the restriction to developing a town home 10:08AM 5

in LDR is due to either density per acre or is 6

lot line. 7

MR. TATE:  Both.  I mean really in the 8

town home/townhouse concept that's -- 9

MR. VICKERY:  Town homes are very small 10:09AM 10

lot, high density, a higher, much higher 11

density type development than what the Low 12

Density Residential District is intended to 13

support.  So you don't get to it until you get 14

to a higher density or at least a mixed use.10:09AM 15

MR. PYLE:  I do find the fact that the 16

County owns a LDM piece of property a bit of 17

conflict similar to this description, we won't 18

do any commercial and they're saying basically 19

the same thing, we don't really plan on doing 10:09AM 20

anything with that other than what its current 21

use.  Did it just fall into LDMU?  22

MR. TATE:  I kind of have a parallel 23

question to this as we look at LD, low 24

density, low density, townhouses.  There's 10:09AM 25
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even a conflict in some regard with that 1

consideration there, so we're having to look 2

at it beyond just the -- you know, we 3

understand the MDR, the R-3 below it, but now 4

we're saying, well, our concern here is town 10:10AM 5

homes really don't meet lower density issues, 6

but we've got a low density zoning that we put 7

townhouses in.8

MR. VICKERY:  It mixed use. 9

MR. TATE:  Right.  I do understand that.  10:10AM 10

MR. VICKERY:  It also is not the same 11

density.  They're very relative terms, low 12

density, medium density, high density.  13

They're more relative to one another than they 14

are to some continuum with an exact line that 10:10AM 15

says you crossed this line and now you're 16

meeting density.  So the character of a mixed 17

use district is much different than a purely 18

residential district.  19

MR. TATE:  Okay.  Any other questions or 10:10AM 20

comments by the Board to the applicant, staff 21

or the public? 22

MR. PYLE:  Could I -- this is not a 23

question, but possibly talk to Ms. Schultz and 24

the County Attorney real quick?  I just want 10:11AM 25
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to make sure full disclosure to the applicant 1

that there's no conflict that I need to recuse 2

myself, if I could speak to them briefly.  I 3

mean, in private or not, you represent a 4

client that we're on opposing sides.  No, 10:11AM 5

we're not in litigation, but I just wanted to 6

make her aware of that before there's a vote, 7

which I don't hold any prejudice to that.  8

MS. SMITH:  The concern that I would have 9

is if you had a relationship that would result 10:11AM 10

in a special benefit or loss to you as a 11

result of your...12

MR. PYLE:  No, they're totally -- it's 13

where I work and I don't think Ms. Schultz 14

even knows the conflict.  I just put two and 10:11AM 15

two together as we sat here.  Again I don't 16

think my vote has any -- there's no bearing on 17

that, but I would rather tell her now.18

MS. SMITH:  What the ethic rules require 19

is that you disclose any special gain or loss 10:11AM 20

to you, a principal or a family member of 21

yours.  And a special gain or loss has to do 22

with generally financial gains.  So if your 23

boss would benefit from the development or 24

suffer a loss from the development or 10:12AM 25
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rezoning... 1

MR. PYLE:  It has absolutely nothing to do 2

with the hearing before us.  It's simply a 3

completely separate matter.  She happens to 4

represent a client that is on an opposing view 10:12AM 5

of the company that I work for.  That's all.  6

I just wanted to disclose so that if I needed 7

to recuse.  8

MS. SCHULTZ:  Mr. Pyle, I tremendously 9

respect you as you probably know.  Do you feel 10:12AM 10

like you can sit here today and vote on this 11

matter independent of the other relationship 12

or anything else involved?  13

MR. PYLE:  Yes. 14

MS. SCHULTZ:  And you don't know Mr. Olson 10:12AM 15

sitting here today, right? 16

MR. PYLE:  No. 17

MS. SCHULTZ:  Okay.  18

MS. SMITH:  I do not find that you have a 19

voting conflict and as I have advised the 10:13AM 20

Board in the past, the ethic rules require 21

that you vote unless you have a conflict that 22

would result in a special benefit or loss.  I 23

do not find that's the case based on what 24

you've told me, so I am not asking that you 10:13AM 25
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recuse yourself. 1

MR. PYLE:  I just want to make it clear 2

for Ms. Schultz.  3

MS. SMITH:  I appreciate it.  You can ask 4

him a question. 5

MS. SCHULTZ:  Can I approach him and talk 6

to him confidentially?  7

MS. SMITH:  Any disclosure that he makes 8

has to be on the record.9

MS. SCHULTZ:  Mr. Pyle, does it relate to 10:13AM 10

a current client of mine that's independent of 11

Mr. Olson?12

MR. PYLE:  Yes, they're totally separate.  13

I think, I don't believe they have any.  14

MS. SCHULTZ:  But you can sit here today 10:13AM 15

and put that aside and vote for this matter 16

based on the evidence?  17

MR. PYLE:  I work for the elevator company 18

and you represent another elevator company. 19

MS. SCHULTZ:  I know. 20

MR. PYLE:  That's it.  I don't believe 21

that there's any relevance to this case.  I 22

didn't think there was anyway.  23

MS. SCHULTZ:  I'm fine with that.  24

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  10:14AM 25
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Yes, ma'am.1

MS. SMITH:  If the Board is inclined to 2

vote to approve the zoning I just want to make 3

it clear that there are going to have to be 4

specific findings to address the criteria that 10:14AM 5

staff has indicated is not consistent.  I 6

think that's A, B, C and E, specifically on 7

the incompatible infill, as well as the 8

finding that there is no unique circumstances 9

related to this specific parcel that would 10:14AM 10

waive the locational criteria. 11

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  12

I believe there's no other questions. 13

MR. CORDES:  I've got one.  I'm a little 14

bit confused here.  So we're voting on LDMU 10:15AM 15

and if we don't do that you're saying you 16

would like LDR.  What would the procedure be, 17

we've got to vote on the LDMU first?  18

MR. TATE:  Correct.  What we would do is 19

we would ask staff to give us -- we would 10:15AM 20

probably take a recess for a few minutes -- 21

give us Findings-of-Fact that are compatible 22

with a LDR, which Mr. Griffin has indicated he 23

somewhat has done that already, if we went 24

that direction. 10:15AM 25
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MR. CORDES:  Okay.  And the follow-up to 1

that, and this is kind of a comment or a 2

question of staff, if you could consider the 3

pledge of the owners to do what they're going 4

to do would you approve it?  It sounds like 10:15AM 5

most of your objection is over the fact that 6

it's mixed use, they could come in and do some 7

things that would be incompatible even though 8

they're certainly not going to. 9

MR. TATE:  It's just not a consideration 10:16AM 10

that can be done at this level at this 11

particular meeting and at the next level at 12

that particular meeting. 13

MS. SMITH:  The concern is because even 14

though they may say that that's not what 10:16AM 15

they're going to do they could sell the 16

property to anyone and they would have those 17

rights. 18

MR. CORDES:  I got that.  Here's where I'm 19

going.  If this Board were to vote LDMU, we've 10:16AM 20

got to have a reason, based on what you're 21

saying?  22

MS. SMITH:  Correct.  You have to address 23

the criterion and state how the rezoning 24

request meets that criterion.  10:16AM 25

850.434.5954/800.321.5954 - REPORTERS@TAYLORREPORTINGSERVICES.COM

91

MR. TATE:  Okay.  At this point we'll go 1

ahead and close the public portion of the 2

meeting and then I would like to address some 3

comments to my fellow Board members and we'll 4

go from there on a vote.  10:17AM 5

We're dealing with a rezoning that has an 6

arbitrary line attached to another piece of 7

property that is the same.  Below it we have 8

another piece of property that is more intense 9

of which has not been developed yet either.  10:17AM 10

So we already have one property that already 11

has the blessings of the County, whether by 12

right or by rezoning, mixed use or the medium 13

density properties.  When I personally look at 14

these, I just don't struggle with the 10:17AM 15

compatibility of them within the Comprehensive 16

Plan.  17

Now, that doesn't mean that I have the 18

answer to all the criteria, but what we have 19

to do is accept staff's criteria, accept 10:17AM 20

staff's criteria with modifications, accept 21

the applicant's criteria or write our own 22

criteria or vote it down.  So those are the 23

options that we have in front of us.  And if 24

you need a couple of minutes, if somebody has 10:18AM 25
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a motion but they need to think it through, 1

that's fine as well.2

MR. WINGATE:  Mr. Chairman?  3

MR. TATE:  Yes.  4

MR. WINGATE:  I have a heartburn, which 10:18AM 5

makes we kind of uncomfortable with, being in 6

the real estate business, what the explosion 7

for the future that has been projected for 8

that area, and the hearsay on the projection 9

that has been kind of common knowledge with 10:18AM 10

developers running out there like flies.  11

There's about ten developers that's developing 12

the area.  And we know that in Escambia County 13

the only place to grow is north and west.  14

And being involved with people that know 10:19AM 15

what's going on within the community and with 16

growth and new taxes coming to Escambia 17

County, the money is only going to probably 18

come from that way.  So was just kind of what 19

I'm looking at, that I know several developers 10:19AM 20

that want to get out that way.  I know if that 21

developer goes out there certain criteria is 22

going to have to be met because they've got to 23

go through DRC.  And so from a knowledge point 24

of view that's in-depth and being exposed to 10:19AM 25
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this kind of information sometimes it kind of 1

makes it tough. 2

MR. TATE:  Do you have a question or a 3

comment or is it just a statement in general 4

to the Board?  I understand what you're 10:19AM 5

saying, but, I mean, we've got to go through 6

each one of us if we have any comments as a 7

Board right now.  We're in our own 8

deliberations.9

MR. WINGATE:  I think within the criteria 10:20AM 10

I think the criteria is knowing the explosion 11

of the future of tg95.12

Hat particular area it kind of -- 13

MR. TATE:  The changing conditions.14

MR. WINGATE:  You've got basic change of 10:20AM 15

conditions that's no control of this Board, 16

but it's happening automatically because of 17

change of time of development, people wanting 18

to come to Escambia County. 19

MR. TATE:  Mr. Wingate, for what you've 10:20AM 20

said and for all of us as we consider the 21

definition that I read to the public for 22

changed conditions, okay, the area to which 23

the proposed rezoning would apply has changed 24

or is changing to such a degree that it's in 10:20AM 25
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the public interest to encourage new uses, 1

density or intensity in the area through 2

rezoning.  3

I mean you're saying that's where growth 4

is going and there's got to be something done 10:21AM 5

to encourage it?  6

MR. WINGATE:  To meet the trend and what's 7

going to happen there. 8

MR. TATE:  So our definition of changed 9

conditions that we're given to work with is 10:21AM 10

the area to which the proposed rezoning has 11

changed, is changing, correct, and to such a 12

degree it's in the public interest to 13

encourage new uses, density or intensity. 14

MR. WINGATE:  Right.10:21AM 15

MS. SMITH:  Mr. Tate, I believe that's one 16

that staff and Ms. Schultz were in agreement 17

on. 18

MR. TATE:  Right.  I understand that.  I'm 19

just making sure everybody understands that 10:21AM 20

that's what we're dealing with here.  There's 21

no doubt -- everybody is in agreement that the 22

changing conditions there are more residential 23

uses moving forward in the future.  24

MS. ORAM:  Wouldn't that spill over to 10:21AM 25
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development patterns?  1

MR. TATE:  I believe it does.  2

MS. ORAM:  So it's in tune or consistent 3

with the change, upcoming change. 4

MR. PYLE:  I find such a conflict with the 10:22AM 5

fact that -- I think everyone can state that 6

as a fact.  There's obviously a need.  And the 7

reality is the County has a LDMU piece of 8

property that's adjacent.  Denying this 9

only -- I would imagine, therefore, alters in 10:22AM 10

a positive direction the value of that 11

property.  I have a really hard time 12

separating those two issues.13

But what I would like to know is the 14

difference for applicant, what is time frame?  10:22AM 15

Obviously we haven't addressed that.  We 16

talked about procedural.  The only thing that 17

we can address is what's before us.  And, 18

staff, what happens with the turnaround if we 19

deny and they have to go to the LDR?  10:22AM 20

MR. TATE:  If they go to the LDR and we 21

approve it, it still has to go before the 22

Board of County Commission.  We will then have 23

the opportunity to see them for a third time 24

on the same subject as they go through a PUD 10:23AM 25
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process, which this Board has not heard a PUD 1

in at least five to seven years.  It's a 2

unique process.  It's a great process for 3

development under certain conditions, but it's 4

annual application process for them, it's 10:23AM 5

another period of time.  The PUD has to go 6

through us and then has to go to the Board of 7

County Commissioners, so it's a whole other 8

process of the same steps but with just more 9

information.  We would actually hear at the 10:23AM 10

PUD, this is where they would agree to 11

conditions.  We wouldn't do this, we would do 12

this.  13

At the same time the County would agree to 14

certain conditions that we will let them do 10:23AM 15

this even though that is less than the 16

standard of that zoning district or whatever, 17

so there's a reciprocal relationship when we 18

get into that PUD process.  They get to do 19

some things that they would like to do, the 10:24AM 20

County gives up things, the County actually 21

imposes some things, as well.  So it's an 22

interesting process.  Whether or not it's 23

necessary here, I don't know.  24

At this point I would ask if there's any 10:24AM 25
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Board member here that would further a motion 1

one direction or another and then we can move 2

ahead.3

(Motion by Mr. Cordes.)4

MR. CORDES:  Mr. Chairman, I recommend 10:24AM 5

that we approve the LDMU as presented by the 6

client. 7

MR. TATE:  Accepting the client's 8

Findings-of-Fact and meeting all criteria?  9

MR. CORDES:  I may need some help 10:24AM 10

responding to it, but I believe they have met 11

it. 12

MR. TATE:  Okay.  13

MR. PYLE:  Question.  And then, therefore, 14

if that were the proposal that went before the 10:24AM 15

Board of County Commissioners and they would 16

deem whether the applicant has met them?  17

MR. TATE:  Correct.  And if they did not, 18

the Board, do they have the authority at this 19

point to rezone to a lower density or does it 10:25AM 20

have to come back to us?  I know that's been 21

up in the air.  They can't go higher, but they 22

can rezone it to that lower. 23

MS. SMITH:  Go lower. 24

MR. TATE:  Without -- 10:25AM 25
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MR. LEMOS:  Without coming back to you. 1

MR. TATE:  Without coming back to us.  So 2

the Board could take direction to rezone it to 3

the lower density and then they would be in 4

that PUD process still.10:25AM 5

MR. LOWERY:  I second the motion.  I think 6

that the proposed change to the Future Land 7

Use that's already been approved by this Board 8

makes it compatible or consistent with the 9

Comprehensive Plan. 10:25AM 10

I think the rezoning would be consistent 11

with the Land Development Code given the 12

adjoining properties that have either the same 13

as or a higher density. 14

And the changed conditions as we've 10:25AM 15

already discussed changed the development 16

patterns. 17

MR. TATE:  Let me ask you this.  Rather 18

than a second, would you accept those as where 19

you said you need some -- 10:26AM 20

MR. CORDES:  Yes.  21

MR. TATE:  So we'll take that as our 22

motion.  23

MR. LOWERY:  That's our motion.  I move to 24

approve.10:26AM 25
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MR. TATE:  And then a second, if there's a 1

second. 2

MR. WINGATE:  Second.  We have a motion 3

and a second.  Do we have any questions.  4

MR. PYLE:  Counselor. 10:26AM 5

MS. SMITH:  I just wanted to clarify with 6

Mr. Lowery.  You mentioned your criteria.  You 7

talk about changed conditions and changed 8

conditions was not one that we needed.  9

MR. LOWERY:  I understand.10:26AM 10

MS. SMITH:  I think that there needs to be 11

some comments related to the development 12

pattern, which was Criterion E, that has not 13

been addressed.14

MR. LOWERY:  That's what I was saying, 10:26AM 15

that the changed conditions in the area, in 16

that neighborhood, has changed the development 17

for the need for development patterns. 18

MS. SMITH:  Thank you for clarifying. 19

MR. TATE:  A motion and a second.  All 10:27AM 20

those in favor show by raising your right 21

hand. 22

(Board members vote.) 23

MR. TATE:  The motion passes six/0.  24

(The motion passed unanimously.) 25
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MR. TATE:  Thank you for your time.  Maybe 1

we'll see you again. 2

MR. LEMOS:  Before we get too far away, 3

let me emphasize, we are still in that waiting 4

period for -- 10:27AM 5

MR. TATE:  That's correct.  6

MR. LEMOS:  It's got to be contingent upon 7

approval of the Future Land Use change map 8

approval.9

MR. TATE:  Correct.  And I believe 10:27AM 10

Mr. Lowery mentioned that in his motion.  11

MR. LOWERY:  Yes.  12

MR. TATE:  We're going to go ahead and 13

take a -- let's come back at 10:35.  14

(The quasi-judicial rezoning hearings 10:27AM 15

concluded at 10:30.) 16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. B.           
Meeting Date: 06/02/2015  
CASE : Z-2015-12
APPLICANT: Kerry Anne Schultz, Agent for The Busbee Limited

Partnership and Murphy J. Jacob Trust 

ADDRESS: 9600 Block Tower Ridge Road 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 01-1S-32-1000-070-003; 01-1S-32-1000-050-003;
01-1S-32-1000-050-004; 01-1S-32-1000-110-003;
01-1S-32-1000-080-003; 01-1S-32-1000-120-004

FUTURE LAND USE: RC (MU-S pending state
review)  

DISTRICT: 1  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 07/07/2015 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: RMU, Rural Mixed-use district (two du/acre)

TO: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (seven du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469
(Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and
policies of the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of its provisions.

CP Policy FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).
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CP Policy FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.
FLUM Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S)
General Description: Intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses
while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and
suburban land uses.
Range of Allowable Uses: Residential, retail sales & services, professional office,
recreational facilities, public and civic.
Standards:
Residential Minimum Density: 2 du/acre
Maximum Density: 25 du/acre
Non-Residential Minimum Intensity: None
Maximum Intensity: 1.0 Floor Area Ratio (FAR)

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and
FLUM. Although the increased density of the proposed LDMU zoning is consistent
with that allowed by the pending Mixed-Use Suburban FLU, and the permitted
uses of the proposed LDMU are consistent with the stated intent of MU-S to allow
for a mix of residential and non-residential uses, compatible infill would not
be promoted by the range of LDMU allowed uses.

Alternatively, Low Density Residential (LDR) zoning would be compatible and
remain consistent with both the allowed uses and density of MU-S. Consistency
with other applicable policies of the Comprehensive Plan would be confirmed
during review of proposed development for compliance with implementing Land
Development Code regulations.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the stated purposes and intent
of the LDC and not in conflict with any of its provisions.

LDC Sec. 3-2.4 Rural Mixed-use district (RMU).
(a) Purpose. The Rural Mixed-use (RMU) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for a mix of low density residential uses and compatible
non-residential uses within areas that have historically developed as rural or
semi-rural communities. The primary intent of the district is to sustain these
communities by allowing greater residential density, smaller residential lots, and a
more diverse mix of non-residential uses than the Agricultural or Rural Residential
districts, but continue to support the preservation of agriculturally productive
lands. The RMU district allows public facilities and services necessary for the
health, safety, and welfare of the rural mixed-use community, and other
non-residential uses that are compact, traditionally neighborhood supportive, and
compatible with rural community character. District communities are often
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anchored by arterial and collector streets, but they are not characterized by urban
or suburban infrastructure. Residential uses are generally limited to detached
single-family dwellings, consistent with existing rural communities and limited
infrastructure.

LDC Sec. 3-2.5 Low Density Residential district (LDR).
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at low densities within
suburban areas. The primary intent of the district is to provide for large-lot
suburban type residential neighborhood development that blends aspects of rural
openness with the benefits of urban street connectivity, and at greater density
than the Rural Residential district. Residential uses within the LDR district are
predominantly detached single-family dwellings. Clustering dwellings on smaller
residential lots may occur where needed to protect prime farmland from
non-agricultural use or to conserve and protect environmentally sensitive areas.
The district allows non-residential uses that are compatible with suburban
residential neighborhoods and the natural resources of the area. 

LDC Sec. 3-2.6 Low Density Mixed-use district (LDMU).
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Mixed-use (LDMU) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of low density residential
uses and compatible non-residential uses within mostly suburban areas. The
primary intent of the district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood-scale retail
sales, services and professional offices with greater dwelling unit density and
diversity than the Low Density Residential district. Additionally, the LDMU district
is intended to rely on a pattern of well-connected streets and provide for the
separation of suburban uses from more dense and intense urban uses.
Residential uses within the district include most forms of single-family, two-family
and multi-family dwellings.
(f) Rezoning to LDMU. Low Density Mixed-use zoning may be established only
within the Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) and Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) future land
use categories. The district is suitable for suburban or urban areas with central
water and sewer and developed street networks. The district is appropriate to
provide transitions between areas zoned or used for low or medium density
residential and areas zoned or used for high density mixed-use. Rezoning to
LDMU is subject to the same location criteria as any new non-residential use
proposed within the LDMU district.
(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the LDMU
district that are not part of a predominantly residential development or a planned
unit development, or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be
on parcels that satisfy at least one of the following location criteria:
(5) Documented compatibility. A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant
provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the
parcel or use that were not anticipated by the alternative location criteria [along an
arterial or collector street], and the proposed use will be able to achieve long-term
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compatibility with existing and potential uses.

FINDINGS
The proposed rezoning to LDMU is not consistent with stated purposes of the
LDC and is in conflict with some provisions. The primary intent of the LDMU
district, (to provide for a mix of neighborhood-scale retail sales and services,
professional offices, and greater dwelling unit density and diversity than LDR)
cannot be appropriately fulfilled at the location proposed. The location does not
comply with the arterial or collector street criteria of the district, and there are no
unique circumstances regarding the subject parcels that were unanticipated by
those criteria.

Rezoning to LDMU is appropriate where there is a pattern of well-connected
streets, but the surrounding streets are within substandard rights-of-way and not
well-connected.  The district is also appropriate to provide separation between
suburban and urban uses, but that function is not applicable to the subject
parcels.  Conversely, some LDMU allowed uses at the location proposed could
create a need for separation.

Alternatively, the LDR district would allow an increase in the density of
single-family detached dwellings.  LDR would also be consistent with the
purposes of the LDC and not in conflict with its provisions. Consistency with
other purposes of the LDC would be confirmed during review of proposed
development for compliance with applicable regulations.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the
proposed zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities,
and conditions and able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion
over time such that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The
appropriateness of the rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be
proposed, but is evident for all permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
All land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are not compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities, and
conditions. Unlike the current RMU or alternative LDR, uses allowed by LDMU
include new or expanded manufactured home parks and subdivisions,
townhouses, zero lot line subdivisions, and retail sales and services within a
neighborhood retail center up to 35,000 square feet.  Uses, activities, and
conditions allowed by LDR would, however, be compatible with
those surrounding the subject parcels.

The area of existing LDMU on the east side of Tower Ridge Road is limited to a
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county parcel used for storage of road maintenance materials (e.g., milled
asphalt, concrete pipe). As established by the original county zoning, the area
of MDR immediately south of the subject parcels was zoned to accomodate
medium density single-family and two-family (R-3)uses, but through a
recently approved subdivision plan the area will be developed for detached
single-family dwellings at less than two units per acre. Neither of these areas
support the establishment of LDMU on the subject parcels.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions.
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
In February, 2015 the county approved the preliminary plat and construction plan
for Vintage Creek Subdivision, a 161-lot single-family detached dwelling
development on 115 acres immediately south of the subject
parcels. That use represents a change to such a degree that it could be in the
public interest to encourage similar new uses and density in the area through
rezoning.  The LDR district would allow such use and density.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
.Development patterns.
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and
orderly development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development
pattern due to the incompatible land uses and residential density that it would
allow.  Alternatively, uses and density allowed by LDR would contribute to a
pattern of logical and orderly development. 

CRITERION f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4
Effect on natural environment.
Whether the proposed rezoning would not increase the probability of any
significant adverse impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
The proposed rezoning would not increase the probability of any significant
adverse impacts on the natural environment. The approximately 12.5 acres of
jurisdictional wetlands preliminarily identified within the subject property require
protection from most uses. The actual presence and extent of adverse impacts
from future development on the parcel would be confirmed through review of the
development for compliance with applicable Land Development Code regulations
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development for compliance with applicable Land Development Code regulations
regardless of the zoning
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Northward along Tower Ridge Rd. near SE corner of subject property
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Remand Photo along NE corner of subject propertyRemand Photo along SE corner of subject property



Southward along Tower Ridge Rd. near SE corner of subject property
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Westward across Tower Ridge Rd. near SE corner of subject property
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Public hearing sign, Tower Ridge Rd. near NE corner of subject property
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Remand Photo along NE corner of subject property



Northward along Tower Ridge Rd. near NE corner of subject property
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Southward along Tower Ridge Rd. near NE corner of subject property
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Westward across Tower Ridge Rd. near NE corner of subject property
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RECEIPT

Development Services Department

Building Inspections Division
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

TMCOOEYCashier ID :

05/13/2015Date Issued. : 635690Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ150500010

Project Name : Z-2015-12

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$338.802765 App ID : PRZ150500010

$338.80 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

OLSON LAND PARTNERS, LLC

$338.80

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

9600  TOWER RIDGE RD, BLK, PENSACOLA, 32526PRZ150500010  726497 $0.00 2,117.50

9600  TOWER RIDGE RD, BLK, PENSACOLA, 32526PRZ150500010  726507 $0.00 338.80

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 5/18/2015
 2,456.30

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt
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3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Griffin Vickery, Urban Planner 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Tommy Brown, Transportation Planner 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE:  August 18, 2015 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Rezoning Analysis  

Z-2015-12, 9600 Block Tower Ridge Rd 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the subject rezoning application, please see our 
comments below: 
 
Tower Ridge Road is a two lane local road with grassed shoulders. The pavement width 
is approximately twenty feet which meets County standards. The current right-of-way of 
approximately thirty feet along Tower Ridge Road does not meet County standards. The 
property owner will be required to donate approximately eighteen feet along the 
property frontage for right-of-way during DRC review.  
 
The traffic generated by development of this parcel should not require major 
reconstruction of the entire length of Tower Ridge Road. Operational improvements 
(turn lanes) may be required at the entrance. These impacts will be addressed at the 
time of DRC review. Congestion may occur at the intersection at Nine Mile Road 
depending on the intensity of the development. This would likely occur during the am 
peak hour, but should not cause the intersection to exceed the level-of-service standard 
established for this segment of Nine Mile Rd. 
 
As part of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Nine Mile Road widening 
project, FDOT plans to construct improvements to Tower Ridge Road including the 
extending of the southern end to create a ‘T’ intersection at Nine Mile Road. Currently 
Tower Ridge Road has a ninety degree turn to the east and intersects Nine Mile Road 
at a skewed angle. This will improve the safety of the intersection by providing a better 
line of sight for motorists. This improvement is planned to occur when this segment of 
Nine Mile Road from Beulah Road to Mobile Highway is expanded to four lanes, which 
is listed as the #1 Non-SIS Capacity Project for the FL-AL TPO. This capacity 
improvement is not currently in the Florida Department of Transportation Five Year 



Work Plan, but may be added as more development occurs on the future commercial 
park (OLF Site 8-A) and Navy Federal Credit Union. 
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   4. B.           
Meeting Date: 09/01/2015  
CASE : Z-2015-13
APPLICANT: J. Dan Gilmore, Agent for Exit 3 Investments, LLC 

ADDRESS: Detailed Specific Area Plan (DSAP) 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: Multiple (Listed Below)
FUTURE LAND USE: Agricultural, (AG) and Rural

Community (RC)  

DISTRICT: 5  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: Optional Sector Plan, Jacks Branch DSAP 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/08/2015 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: Agricultural district (Agr), density of one dwelling unit per 20 acres and Rural
Mixed-use district (RMU), density of two dwelling units per acre

TO: Low Density Residential district (LDR), Detailed Specific Area Plan Land Use
Conservation Neighborhood with a maximum density of 3 dwelling units per net acre.

Medium Density Residential district (MDR), Detailed Specific Area Plan Land Use
Suburban Garden with a maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre.

High Density Residential district (HDR), Detailed Specific Area Plan Land Use Traditional
Garden with a maximum density of 15 dwelling units per acre.

High Density Residential district (HDR), Detailed Specific Area Plan Land Use Traditional
Village with a maximum density of 20 dwelling units per acre.

High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU), Detailed Specific Area Plan Land Use
Neighborhood Center, with a maximum gross floor area of 15,000 square feet.

Commercial district (Com), Detailed Specific Area Plan Land Use Village Center, with a
maximum gross floor area of 200,000 square feet.

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)



(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan,
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan's provisions

FLU 16.5.1 The OSP shall contain mixed-use town, village and neighborhood centers.
The location of these centers shall be generally consistent with the conceptual long-term
build-out overlay. The intent of these centers is to provide recreation, retail, service, and
employment opportunities within close proximity to residential neighborhoods. These
centers and the surrounding neighborhoods shall be linked by interconnected,
multi-modal transportation corridors containing pedestrian, bicycle, public transit and
auto facilities, thereby encouraging alternative forms of travel and reducing both VT and
VMT.

FLU 16.5.2 The OSP shall contain a mixture of residential neighborhoods that vary in
regards to dwelling unit type and density. The location of these neighborhoods shall be
generally consistent with the conceptual long-term build-out overlay. The intent of these
neighborhoods is to provide a variety of housing options and within close proximity to
schools and parks as well as retail, service, and employment opportunities. The location
and design of new neighborhoods shall be such that they ensure the continued
protection of natural resources and existing neighborhoods, promote a strong sense of
community, and provide access to nearby recreational opportunities.

FLU 16.6.2 Approval of zoning changes shall be based on consistency with the OSP
principles and guidelines outlined in FLU 16.1.1. Specifically, such changes shall
consider the impact on the overall DSAP in terms of the central focus of the land uses in
the DSAP, with higher density in general proximity to Centers.

FLU 16.6.3 Once a DSAP is adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, all
applications for development approval (i.e., lot splits, special exceptions, variances)
under the existing zoning shall be evaluated for compatibility with the adopted DSAP.

FINDINGS

As requested by the applicant and based on the legal descriptions and surveys
prepared, signed and certified by Fred R. Thompson, Professional Land Surveyor,
Northwest Florida Land Surveying, Inc., dated 3/10/2015 and 7/20/2015, the following
zoning designations will result:

Tax parcel #1, property reference number 21-2N-31-2100-000-000, approximately 62.62
acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre.



Tax parcel #2, property reference number 20-2N-31-1110-000-000, approximately 78.92
acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #3, property reference number 20-2N-31-4220-000-000, approximately
111.04 acres from Agr to MDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre and Suburban Garden land use, maximum
density of 10 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #4, property reference number 20-2N-31-4300-000-000, approximately 77.96
acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre; MDR, under the DSAP Suburban Garden
land use, maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre; HDMU, under the DSAP
Neighborhood Center use, maximum Gross Floor Area of 15,000 square feet.

Tax parcel #5, property reference number 20-2N-31-3100-000-000, approximately 72.40
acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #6, property reference number 20-2N-31-3000-000-000, approximately 63.56
acres from Agr to MDR, under the DSAP Suburban Garden land use, maximum density
of 10 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #7, property reference number 29-2N-31-3120-000-000, approximately
106.37 acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre; and to MDR, under the DSAP Suburban
Garden land use, maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #8, property reference number 29-2N-31-2100-000-000, approximately 88.04
acres from Agr to MDR, under the DSAP Suburban Garden land use, maximum density
of 10 dwelling units per acre; and to HDR, under the DSAP Traditional Garden land use,
maximum density of 15 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #9, property reference number 29-2N-31-1100-000-000, approximately 95.17
acres from Agr to MDR, under the DSAP Suburban Garden land use, maximum density
of 10 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #10 is not included.

Tax parcel #11, property reference number 29-2N-31-3100-000-000, approximately
98.98 acres from Agr to MDR, under the DSAP Suburban Garden land use, maximum
density of 10 dwelling units per acre; to HDR, under the DSAP Traditional Garden land
use, maximum density of 15 dwelling units per acre; to Commercial, under the DSAP
Village Center land use, maximum Gross Floor Area of 200,000 square feet.

Tax parcel #12, property reference number 32-2N-31-3101-000-000, approximately
160.00 acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,



maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre; MDR, under the DSAP Suburban Garden
land use, maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #13, property reference number 29-2N-31-4000-000-000, approximately
47.49 acres from Agr to HDR, under the DSAP Traditional Garden land use, maximum
density of 15 dwelling units per acre; to Commercial, under the DSAP Village Center
land use, maximum Gross Floor Area of 200,000 square feet.

Tax parcel #14, property reference number 32-2N-31-1103-000-000, approximately
78.96 acres from Agr to HDR, under the DSAP Traditional Village land use, maximum
density of 20 dwelling units per acre; to Commercial, under the DSAP Village Center
land use, maximum Gross Floor Area of 200,000 square feet.

Tax parcel #15, property reference number 32-2N-31-2000-000-003, approximately
121.30 acres from RMU to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #16, property reference number 32-2N-31-2000-000-001, approximately
19.86 acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #17, property reference number 32-2N-31-2000-000-002, approximately
20.00 acres from RMU to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre.

Tax parcel #18 is not included.

Tax parcel #11(*), property reference number 32-2N-31-4206-000-000, approximately
114.36 acres from Agr to LDR, under the DSAP Conservation Neighborhood land use,
maximum density of 3 dwelling units per acre; MDR, under the DSAP Suburban Garden
land use, maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre.

The proposed amendment to Commercial district is consistent with intent of
Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) FLU 16.5.1 by allowing retail, service, and
employment opportunities within close proximity to multiple residential neighborhoods.
The applicant's request to Commercial zoning provides for the allowed uses and
intensities listed under the Village Center land use designation, as described on the
DSAP.

The proposed amendment to High Density Mixed-Use district is consistent with intent of
Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) FLU 16.5.1 by allowing retail, service, and
employment opportunities within close proximity to multiple residential neighborhoods.
The applicant's request to HDMU provides for the allowed uses and intensities listed
under the Neighborhood Center land use designation, as described on the DSAP.

The proposed amendment to Low Density Residential, DSAP land use Conservation, is
consistent with the intent and purpose of CPP FLU 16.5.2, based on the adopted
allowed zoning densities and intensities delineated within the Escambia County



Mid-West Sector Plan, Jacks Branch DSAP.

The proposed amendment to Medium Density Residential, DSAP Land Use Suburban
Garden, is consistent with the intent and purpose of CPP FLU 16.5.2, based on the
adopted allowed zoning densities and intensities delineated within the Escambia County
Mid-West Sector Plan, Jacks Branch DSAP.

The proposed amendment to High Density Residential, DSAP Land Use Traditional
Garden, is consistent with the intent and purpose of CPP FLU 16.5.2, based on the
adopted allowed zoning densities and intensities delineated within the Escambia County
Mid-West Sector Plan, Jacks Branch DSAP.

The proposed amendment to High Density Residential, DSAP Land Use Traditional
Village, is consistent with the intent and purpose of CPP FLU 16.5.2, based on the
adopted allowed zoning densities and intensities delineated within the Escambia County
Mid-West Sector Plan, Jacks Branch DSAP.

The proposed amendment to Commercial, High Density Mixed-use, Low, Medium and
High Density Residential respectively, will comply with the allowed target densities
identified in the Land Use Plan and Development Program, Section 2.02 of the
Development Program for each Branch. The proposed amendment, by zoning district, is
consistent with CPP FLU 16.6.2, as the adopted DSAP and described zoning districts
are compatible to the land uses identified in Figure 2.01.A, Final Land Use Plan.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The proposed rezoning request is necessary to maintain
consistency with the underlying existing zoning districts of the surrounding properties,
while abiding to the designated target densities identified by the standards contained in
the adopted DSAPs. At the time of individual development submittal, each project will be
evaluated separately to ensure compliance with densities and all other design standards
as outlined in the Escambia County Mid-West Sector Plan, Jacks Branch Detailed
Specific Area Plan (DSAP).

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such that no
use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all



permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Based on the community design principles used to develop the DSAPs and using the
guidelines contained within the Escambia County Mid-West Sector Plan, the existing
and proposed land uses will be consistent with the Development Program for each
Branch and compatible with the overall intent of the Plan.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS

There are changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s). The
proposed amendment includes a request for multiple zoning districts for several parcels
located within the boundaries of the adopted Escambia County Mid-West Sector Plan,
Jacks Branch DSAP. The underlying zoning districts guide the development standards
for individual properties, while large development proposals are regulated by the Final
Land Use Plan Map and the design standards of the DSAP.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 

One of the primary goals of the Sector Plan is to encourage cohesive and sustainable
development patterns within central Escambia County, emphasizing urban form and the
protection of regional resources and facilities. Based on the Escambia County Mid-West
Sector Plan, DSAP document, the proposed amendments would result in a logical and
orderly development pattern. Any individually proposed development, in the future, will
be reviewed and approved thru the Development Review Committee process. 

Effect on natural environment
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated on
the subject properties. The applicant has included a survey depicting a rough estimate
of the existing wetlands within the boundaries of the parcels. FLU 16.4.6.3 states that



of the existing wetlands within the boundaries of the parcels. FLU 16.4.6.3 states that
land within a DSAP and located within areas designated as Low-Impact natural
Resource Areas (LINRAs), will be evaluated during the development review process for
environmental significance. Land uses, densities, and intensities will be that of the
underlying land use plan. However, wetlands and other environmentally sensitive lands
as defined in Section 3.04 will be subject to the relevant requirements of Conservation
Policies 1.3.7, 1.3.8 and Conservation Objective 1.4. Lands identified through the
permitting process for preservation shall be protected through the recordation of
conservation easements consistent with guidelines of the DSAP and Florida Statutes.
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DSAP LAND USE MAP COMBINED ZONING DISTRICT OLD NEW ZONING

DSAP ALLOWED 

MAXIMUM DENSITY 

CONSERVATION VAG-1, VR-1, R-1, V-1, V-2, V2-A, V-5, SDD LDR 3 du/acr

SUBURBAN GARDEN V-1, V-2, V2A, V-5, SDD, R-2, R-3, V-3, V-4 MDR 10du/acr

TRADITIONAL GARDEN R-2, R-3, V-3, V-4, R-4 HDR 15 du/acr

TRADITIONAL VILLAGE R-2, R-3, V-3, V-4, R-4 HDR 20 du/acr









































































































 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Juan Lemos, Senior Planner 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Tommy Brown, Transportation Planner 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE:  August 12, 2015 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Rezoning Analysis – Z-2015-13 

Sector Plan DSAP 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the subject rezoning application, please see our 
comments below: 
 

According to Objective FLU 16.7 Adequate Public Facilities and Services  
Subsection 16.7.2 it states, “Prior to or in conjunction with the approval of a DSAP by 
the Escambia Board of County Commissioners, the land for the following public facilities 
shall be conveyed to Escambia County or a development agreement addressing the 
timely conveyance of such lands shall be approved by Escambia County.” It further 
states, “Right-of-way for identified collector and arterial roadways necessary to serve 
the DSAP.” In response to the aforementioned objective and subsection, TTO Staff’s 
comments are as follows: 
 

• Specific location and needs of right-of-way and roadways identified in the 
DSAP will be reviewed and determined during the Development Review 
Committee process 

 
• Offsite impacts and potential mitigation requirements will be considered as 

development occurs 
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 
 



RECEIPT

Development Services Department

Building Inspections Division
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

KLHARPERCashier ID :

05/27/2015Date Issued. : 636747Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ150500011

Project Name : Z-2015-13

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$2,964.50103481 App ID : PRZ150500011

$2,964.50 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

TIBBETTS HOLDINGS

$2,964.50

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

0  OFF HWY 196 , CANTONMENT, 32533PRZ150500011  727690 $0.00 2,964.50

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 8/13/2015
 2,964.50

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt
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